
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council  

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE: May 23, 2024 

SUBJECT: Agenda Information – 5/28/2024 

The following is additional or summary information regarding matters on the upcoming Town Council 
Agenda.  The numbering below follows the agenda, and some routine or self-explanatory items are not 
discussed in this memo.  As you review your packet materials, please do not hesitate to contact the 
appropriate staff member or me prior to the Council meeting with any questions or concerns.  

5 Presentations 
5a Presentation regarding River Valley Transit’s XtraMile Program  - The Council will receive a 
presentation from a representative of River Valley Transit regarding its services including the new on 
demand local service called XtraMile that will begin on May 28. 

7 Resolutions/Ordinances/Policies/Proclamations 
7a Proclamation honoring Officer Mark Pekar on his retirement – The Council will present a 
Proclamation to Officer Pekar regarding his more than 20 years of service to the community and 
congratulating him on his retirement. 

7b Resolution establishing the East Hampton Ambulance Task Force – The Council is asked to 
adopt a resolution creating and establishing the charge for a task force to evaluate options for the future 
provision of emergency ambulance service in the Town.  The Resolution indicates that the East Hampton 
Ambulance Task force will initially consist of six members that will be appointed at this meeting and will 
be charged with evaluating multiple options for provision of the service and for reporting on a 
recommendation to the Town Council not later than December 31, 2024. 

Recommendation:  Approve the Resolution. 

7c Initial consideration of an ordinance providing for citations and setting of a public hearing – 
The Council is asked to review an ordinance that provides for the issuance of citations and fines for 
violations of sections of the Town Code and other regulations including the Inland Wetland and 
Watercourses and Zoning regulations.  The new language is incorporated into existing and updated 
sections of the Code related to hearing procedures for appeal of these citations.  The new language 
provides the required local ordinance outlining the implementation of local citations, which aids the 
Town in responding to situations where property owners are not addressing notifications regarding 
violations without the Town resorting to actions in the State Court system.  The Council is asked to 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 5/28/2024 
May 23, 2024 
Page 2 
 

 
 

review the language to provide any input it may have and to set a public hearing regarding the 
ordinance to occur during its meeting on June 11. 
 
 Recommendation:  Set a public hearing regarding the Ordinance as part of the June 11 meeting. 
 
9 New Business 
9a Consideration of a motion to set a public hearing regarding applications which may be 
received for the Neighborhood Assistance Act - The Council is asked to set a public hearing as part of its 
next meeting regarding applications that are expected to be received under the Connecticut 
Neighborhood Assistance Act from Epoch Arts or others.  As a reminder, the CT Neighborhood 
Assistance Act is a tax credit program designed to provide funding for municipal and tax-exempt 
organizations by providing a business tax credit to businesses who make cash contributions to these 
entities within certain categories.  Epoch Arts is expected to submit an application as it has routinely 
done in the past.  It is expected that Epoch Arts will be seeking support for energy efficiency 
improvements or other improvements for its facility on Skinner Street. 
 
 Recommendation:  Set a public hearing regarding the applications as part of the June 11 
meeting. 
 
9b Consideration of a Fire Department Office Assistant Job Description – The Council is asked to 
consider a revised  Job Description for a part time Office Assistant position in the Fire Department.  The 
heavily revised description for this position that provides administrative support for the Fire Department  
and Board of Fire Commissioners has been updated to address current requirements of the position.  
The position, which is allocated about 10 hours per week, is currently occupied and the incumbent will 
remain in the position if they are able to meet the updated requirements. 
 
 Recommendation:  Approve the updated Description. 
 
9c Consideration of a request related to the Yellow Ribbon Tree – The Council is asked to consider 
a request from the VFW Auxiliary to be allowed to decorate the Yellow Ribbon Tree during Old Home 
Days in the theme of this year’s event; Hooray for Hollywood.  The decorations would celebrate 
Hollywood celebrities that served in the military.  As a reminder, the “Yellow Ribbon Tree” is located in 
the intersection island where Summit Street meets Main Street in the Village Center. 
 

Recommendation:  Approve the use. 
 
9d Consideration of Police Department General Orders – The Council is asked to review two (2) 
General Orders, including an update to an existing order and a new General Order, for the Police 
Department.   The changes, which are described in Chief Woessner’s memo, are part of the ongoing 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 5/28/2024 
May 23, 2024 
Page 3 
 

 
 

effort to respond to the accreditation standards and to improve the Departments Policies and General 
Orders. 
 
 Recommendation:  Approve the General Orders. 
 
The remainder of the items are of a routine nature, in the sole purview of the Council or are 
announcements.  Please contact me or the appropriate staff member with questions or concerns.  



Town Council Public Hearing 1 5/7/2024 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 
Town Council Public Hearing 

Tuesday, May 7, 2024 
Town Hall Council Chambers and Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Dean Markham, Vice Chairperson Karen Wanat, Council Members Deborah 
Cunningham, Tim Feegel, Richard Knotek, Jack Solomon, and Jordan Werme and Town Manager 
David Cox. 

Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance 
Chairman Markham called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Town Hall Council Chambers and 
via Zoom. 

Public Hearing on the Recommended FY2024-2025 General Government, Board of Education, 
Debt Service and Capital Improvement Budgets 
There were no public comments on the budgets. 

Discussion Regarding Council Recommendations 
Finance Director Jeff Jylkka provided an overview of the town revenues that should be available to 
cover the forecasted $824,000 deficit in the Board of Education budget this year. Additional revenue 
is expected from tax collections related to the tax sale, a Municipal Revenue Sharing Grant and other 
small items.  Also, the expected fund balance as of June 30, 2024 will be $6.3 million, which is 11.7% 
of the FY24 Budget. 

Chairman Markham provided an overview of the Town Council proposed amendments to the Board 
of Finance proposed budget.  It is a reduction of approximately $24,000. The detail worksheet will be 
included with the minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office.  The budget will be voted on at the May 
14, 2024 Town Council Meeting.  The anticipated Town Meeting date is May 28 and referendum date 
is June 4, 2024. 

Chairman Markham also noted that the Ambulance Task Force is in the process of being formed. 
Town Council member Richard Knotek will be the Chairman, Tim Feegel will be the Vice Chairman 
and Deborah Cunningham and Jordan Werme will also be members. There will be residents added to 
the group soon. 

Adjournment 
A motion was made by Mr. Solomon, seconded by Ms. Cunningham, to adjourn the meeting at 
6:55pm. Voted (7-0). 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 
Recording Clerk 

Agenda Item 3a



Town Council Regular Meeting 1 5/14/2024 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 
Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, May 14, 2024 
Town Hall Council Chambers and Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Dean Markham, Vice Chairperson Karen Wanat, Council Members Deborah 
Cunningham, Tim Feegel, Richard Knotek, Jack Solomon, and Jordan Werme and Town Manager 
David Cox. 

Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance 
Chairman Markham called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Town Hall Council Chambers and 
via Zoom. 

Adoption of Agenda 
A motion was made by Mr. Solomon, seconded by Mr. Werme, to adopt the agenda as submitted. 
Voted (7-0). 

Approval of Minutes 
Regular Meeting of April 23, 2024 
A motion was made by Mr. Solomon, seconded by Ms. Cunningham, to approve the minutes of 
the Town Council Regular Meeting of April 23, 2024 as submitted. Voted (7-0). 

Public Remarks 
Nancy Kohler, 31 Daniel Street and Chairperson of the Board of Education thanked the Town Council 
for the time and effort put into the budget process this year.  She also introduced the newly hired 
Superintendent of Schools Dr. Timothy Van Tasel, who will replace retiring Superintendent Paul 
Smith as of July 1, 2024.  Dr. Van Tasel commented that he is looking forward to returning to East 
Hampton and looks forward to working with everyone. 

Donald Scranton, Chief of the East Hampton Ambulance Association, expressed his appreciation to 
the Town Council for adding funds to the budget for the Ambulance Association.  He also thanked 
them for considering the other public safety groups including the new police officer and the discussion 
of a new fire station. 

Presentations 
None 

Bids & Contracts 
None 

Resolutions/Ordinances/Policies/Proclamations 
Adoption of Fair Housing Resolution 
The Fair Housing Resolution is an annual document updating the town’s commitment to upholding 
and enforcing the doctrine of fair housing for all within the community. 

Agenda Item 3b



Town Council Regular Meeting 2 5/14/2024 Minutes 

A motion was made by Mr. Solomon, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to adopt the Fair Housing Resolution 
as presented.  Voted (7-0) 

Continued Business 
Sub-Committee Reports & Updates 
Mr. Knotek noted there will be one appointment later in the meeting.  He also reported that there will 
be some ordinance changes coming up for boards and commissions to add alternates where needed. 

Ms. Cunningham reported on the library delivering books to those that cannot get to the library.  They 
are also working on their strategic plan and a new community room key fob policy. 

Review, Discussion and Possible Action on Board of Finance Recommended FY2024-2025 
General Government, Board of Education, Debt Service and Capital Improvement Budgets 

• Motion to Approve the Fiscal Year 2025 Town General Government Budget
A motion was made by Ms. Wanat, seconded by Mr. Solomon, to approve the Fiscal Year 2025
Town General Government Budget in the amount of $37,725,499.  Voted (7-0)

• Motion to Approve the Fiscal Year 2025 Board of Education Budget
A motion was made by Ms. Wanat, seconded by Mr. Werme, to approve the Fiscal Year 2025
Board of Education budget in the amount of $37,725,499.  Voted (7-0)

• Motion to Set a Date for the Town Meeting and Referendum
A motion was made by Ms. Wanat, seconded by Mr. Solomon, to direct that a Town Meeting be
called for May 28, 2024 beginning at 6:15pm in the Town Hall for the purpose of considering
the Town’s FY2025 budgets and to immediately adjourn consideration of the budgets to
referendum on June 4, 2024 in accordance with State Statute and Town Charter Section 4.1.
Voted (7-0)

• Motion to Approve a Resolution Allocating American Rescue Plan Funds Number 8 to
Allocate $350,000 of these funds to the Capital Improvement Funds for Road Repair and
Maintenance
A motion was made by Ms. Wanat, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to approve a resolution allocating
American Rescue Plan Funds Number 8 to allocate $350,000 of these funds to the Capital
Improvement Funds for Road Repair and Maintenance.  Voted (7-0)

• Motion to Approve the Fiscal Year 2025 Capital Improvement Plan
A motion was made by Ms. Wanat, seconded by Mr. Solomon, to approve the Fiscal Year 2025
Capital Improvements Plan in the amount of $2,369,355, including the purchase of vehicles and
equipment from the respective sinking funds and other sources and funding from LoCIP grants
in the amount of $139,303 and ARPA funds in the amount of $350,000 and contingent on transfer
from the General Fund of current taxes in the amount of $1,265,752.  Voted (7-0)

Alan Hurst will be the moderator for the Town Meeting and Referendum. 



 
Town Council Regular Meeting  3 5/14/2024 Minutes  

New Business 
Review and Possible Action on Purchase & Sale Agreement for 11 Skinner Street 
The Purchase and Sale Agreement is the first formal step in acquiring property.  It outlines the steps 
related to the purchase including appraisals, Board of Finance review, Planning & Zoning review and 
Town Meeting.  
 
A motion was made by Ms. Cunningham, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to approve the Purchase and Sale 
Agreement as presented.  Voted (6-1) Mr. Werme against. 
 
Consideration of the FY 2024-2025 Public Water System Operating Budget & Water Rate 
Recommendation 
Public Utilities Administrator Scott Clayton provided an overview of the FY2024-25 Public Water 
System Operating Budget.  There is no rate increase proposed for the upcoming year.  The WPCA has 
recommended the budget for approval and has set a public hearing for June 4.  The water budget will 
return to the Town Council on June 11th for possible approval. 
 
Discussion and Possible Action on Land Use Enforcement Official Job Description 
This job description is for a part time Land Use Enforcement Official.  This position would be charged 
with undertaking the enforcement activities related to potential violations of land use regulations 
including zoning, wetlands and other related regulations.  The position operates under the Planning & 
Zoning Official. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Wanat, seconded by Mr. Solomon, to approve the Land Use Enforcement 
Official job description as presented.  Voted (7-0) 
 
Review and Possible Action Regarding Police Department Policies/General Orders 

• General Order 4.9 – Complaints that Allege Misconduct by Law Enforcement 
• General Order 5.26 – Statewide Policy Concerning Seat Safety Belt Use Required for Any 

Person Transported in a Municipal Vehicle 
• General Order 5.3 – Equipment 
• General Order 5.11 – Prisoner Transport 
• General Order 10.3 – Records Administration 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Solomon, seconded by Ms. Wanat, to approve the General Orders listed 
above as presented.  Voted (7-0) 
 
It was noted that pertaining to the Seat Belt Use General Order, seat belts have already been required 
for prisoners in East Hampton.  All vehicles have containment systems and in-car cameras as well. 
 
Town Manager’s Report 
Mr. Cox provided his written report for the Council members which will be included with the minutes 
filed in the Town Clerk’s Office. Mr. Cox noted the Wopowog culvert project is moving along.  The 
Recreation Department and Conservation-Lake Commission received a $46,000 grant to form a 
treatment plan for the invasive hydrilla plant in the lake.  Officer Wawruck and K-9 officer Heros will 
be on duty soon.  The Senior Center received a grant through the State and Federal government for a 
new bus and the bus arrived this week.  There is no local match for this grant. There will be a 



Town Council Regular Meeting 4 5/14/2024 Minutes 

presentation at the next Council meeting regarding the River Valley Transit’s Xtramile program, an 
on-demand transit system for anyone in the community with seniors riding for free. 

Appointments 
A motion was made by Mr. Knotek, seconded by Ms. Wanat, to appoint Cathie Horan to the Inland 
Wetlands Watercourses Agency as a full member with a term through June 1, 2026.  Voted (7-0). 

Tax Refunds 
A motion was made by Mr. Feegel, seconded by Ms. Cunningham, to approve tax refunds in the 
amount of $798.39. Voted (7-0). 

Public Remarks 
None 

Communications, Correspondence & Announcements 
April 2024 Board and Commission Summary 
The April 2024 Board and Commission Summary was provided to Council members and will be filed 
with the minutes in the Town Clerk’s Office. 

Invitation from VFW Regarding Memorial Day Parade 
Town Council members received an invitation from the VFW to march in the Memorial Day Parade 
on May 27th. 

Adjournment 
A motion was made by Mr. Solomon, seconded by Ms. Wanat, to adjourn the meeting at 7:35pm. 
Voted (7-0). 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 
Recording Clerk 



Agenda Item 5a



Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user
community, Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar Geographics, and the GIS User
Community

East Hampton XtraMile Zone



Officer Mark Pekar 

WHEREAS, Officer Mark Pekar commenced his career with the Town of East Hampton, Connecticut on May 10, 2004 as a 
Patrolman; and 

WHEREAS, Officer Mark Pekar, over his 20 plus-year career, worked as a Drug Abuse Resistance Education (DARE) Instructor 
and an Accident Reconstructionist, in addition to his regular patrols, service to the community and numerous criminal 
investigations which resulted in the arrests and convictions of individuals; and 

WHEREAS, Officer Mark Pekar honed his skills and increased his abilities through training in disciplines including Traffic Crash 
Reconstruction, Advanced Traffic Crash Investigation, At Scene Traffic Investigation, Interview and Interrogation, Drug Abuse 
Resistance Education (DARE), U.S. Department of Homeland Security Training in Emergency Management, active shooter 
preparation and response and numerous other training courses; and 

WHEREAS, Officer Mark Pekar was a dedicated and valued member of the East Hampton Police Department and was respected 
by his peers and community alike for his professionalism and compassion which he exemplified in his everyday duties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, WE THE EAST HAMPTON TOWN COUNCIL, on behalf of the citizens of East Hampton, extend our best 
wishes to Officer Mark Pekar on his retirement and acknowledge his notable career and his commitment to public service. 

EAST HAMPTON TOWN COUNCIL 

Dean Markham, Chairman Karen Wanat, Vice Chairperson 

Deborah Cunningham Timothy Feegel 

Richard Knotek Jack Solomon 

Jordan Werme 
Dated this 28th day of May 2024 

Agenda Item 7a



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 

East Hampton Town Council 

A Resolution Establishing an Ambulance Task Force 

DRAFT – May 23, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Town of East Hampton is empowered by the Connecticut 
General Statutes to provide ambulance service and that service has been 
provided through the East Hampton Ambulance Association for more than 70 
years, and 

WHEREAS, the Town of East Hampton recognizes that the changing 
nature of the ambulance service and rising costs associated with that service have 
made it necessary to consider options for the future and to provide a planful way 
in which the future of ambulance service in the community will be addressed, and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to create and empower a task force 
of local officials and residents to examine, investigate and advise the Town and 
Town Council regarding the future provision of ambulance service.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town of East Hampton 
Town Council that a task force called the East Hampton Ambulance Task Force 
is hereby established as follows.  The East Hampton Ambulance Task Force 
hereby established shall consist of at least six members who shall be residents of 
the Town appointed by the Town Council.  Not more than four of the members 
will be members of the Town Council evenly divided by the political parties and 
two of the members will be members of the public with no official political 
designation or affiliation.  If other members are appointed by the Town Council, 
balance shall be maintained among the parties and unaffiliated members to the 
extent possible, but the overall Task Force membership shall, at minimum, 
adhere to the minority representation clause of the Connecticut General Statutes. 
The East Hampton Ambulance Task Force shall conduct the work as outlined 
herein and shall provide a final report to the Town Council not later than 
December 31, 2024 at which time the East Hamton Ambulance Task Force shall 
be automatically dissolved unless further action by the Town Council is taken.  
The Town Manager shall be responsible for administrative support of the 
committee including keeping of minutes.  The Task Force Chairperson and Vice 
Chairperson will be named by the Town Council and shall be of different political 
parties. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the East Hampton Ambulance Task Force 
shall be charged with evaluating options for the Town of East Hampton related 
to the future provision of ambulance service within the Town.  Without 

Agenda Item 7b



Page 2 of 2 

limitation, the Task Force should evaluate multiple models for provision of 
ambulance service, including, but not limited to, as a department of the Town 
government, an outside provider including a not for profit/non-profit, including 
the East Hampton Ambulance Association, or by a private company, or jointly 
with one or more other municipalities.  The Ambulance Task Force shall issue 
one or more reports for consideration by the Town Council and the community. 
Said report(s) shall include an evaluation of the current method of provision of 
this service including statutory and operational foundations, human and 
equipment resources, costs and challenges; a discussion of options that have been 
reviewed and a synopsis of the Task Force determination regarding the options 
considered; a recommendation for provision of ambulance service into the future 
including important considerations for governance or contract language; an 
outline of a plan for transition as necessary; and a budget of the potential 
operational costs for the ambulance service in the five fiscal years commencing 
July 1, 2025.  The Ambulance Task force may determine other items to be 
included in the Town Council report(s) as it deems appropriate. 

Approved this 28th day of May, 2024. 

TOWN COUNCIL 

___________________________________ 
Dean Markham, Chairperson 

ATTEST 

_________________________________ 
Patricia Burnham, Town Clerk 



DRAFT – 5/23/2024 

Ordinance No. 2024.02 
Page 1 of 6 

Town of East Hampton 
Middlesex County, Connecticut 

Ordinance No. 2024.02 

An Ordinance Amending Chapter 16 of the Code of the Town of East 
Hampton Regarding Citation Hearing Procedure 

WHEREAS, the Town of East Hampton finds that a local method to enforce its Code of 
Ordinances and related regulations is desirable, expeditious and efficient, and 

WHEREAS, the Connecticut General Statutes provide that a municipality may adopt by 
ordinance a method for issuance of citations for violation of local regulations provided a method for 
appeal and hearing of appeals is provided. 

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to Chapter II of the East Hampton Town Charter, the East 
Hampton Town Council hereby adopts the following Ordinance concerning Ordinance Enforcement 
and Citation Hearing Procedure. 

Section 1:Chapter 16 of the Code of the Town of East Hampton regarding Citation Hearing Procedure 
is hereby repealed, replaced and renamed in its entirety as follows: 

Chapter 16 Ordinance and Regulation Enforcement 

ARTICLE I General Ordinance Enforcement 

16-1 Statutory Authority.

Pursuant to C.G.S.§§ 7-148(c)(10)(A) and 7-152c, as such sections may be amended from time 
to time, the Town of East Hampton hereby adopts the following procedures regarding citations issued 
for violations of town ordinances. 

16-2 Designation of Citation Officers.

Any police officer, or any other person authorized by this Code or by the Town Manager of 
East Hampton is hereby empowered to issue citations for violations of the Code of the Town of East 
Hampton in accordance with this Chapter and applicable provisions of the Connecticut General 
Statutes. 

16-3  Penalty.

Except as provided elsewhere in this Code or in Connecticut General Statutes, any person 
violating a provision of the Code of the Town of East Hampton may be fined up to $250 for each 
offense and each day that a violation continues to exist may be considered a separate and distinct 
violation. 

16-4  Appeal and Hearing.

Any person who receives a citation pursuant to this Article may challenge his or her liability 
therefor and request a hearing thereon in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter and the 
Connecticut General Statutes. 

Agenda Item 7c



DRAFT – 5/23/2024 

Ordinance No. 2024.02 
Page 2 of 6 

Article II Zoning Code and Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Regulations Enforcement 

16-5  Designation of Citation Officers.

A. Citations for violations of Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Regulations. Any police
officer, the Wetlands Enforcement Officer of the Town of East Hampton, or any other person 
authorized by the Town Manager of East Hampton is hereby empowered to issue citations for violations 
of the Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Regulations of the Town of East Hampton in accordance 
with this chapter and Section 22a-42g of the Connecticut General Statutes. 

B. Citations for violations of Zoning Regulations. Any police officer, the Zoning
Enforcement Officer, the Land Use Enforcement Official, or any person authorized by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission of the Town of East Hampton is hereby empowered to issue citations for 
violations of the Zoning Regulations of the Town of East Hampton in accordance with this chapter and 
Section 8-12a of the Connecticut General Statutes. 

16-6  Definitions.

As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

CERTIFIED MAIL — Any form of mail, whether by the United States Postal Service or a private mail 
carrier, whereby the intended recipient is requested to provide a signed receipt showing that he or she 
received the mailing. 

CITATION OFFICER — A person empowered to issue citations pursuant to this section. 

HAND DELIVERY — The direct delivery of a document to a recipient by a Citation Officer, or any 
form of delivery to the last-known address of an intended recipient by the United States Postal Service 
or by any private mail carrier, whereby the carrier provides a written confirmation of delivery to the 
Citation Officer. 

REGULATED ACTIVITY – Shall have the meaning defined in the Wetlands Regulations. 

WETLANDS REGULATIONS — The Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Regulations of the Town 
of East Hampton.  

ZONING REGULATIONS — The Zoning Regulations of the Town of East Hampton. 

16-7   Penalties for Offenses; Fines.

A. Violations of Wetlands Regulations.

(1) In addition to any statutory right or remedy available to the Town under the Wetlands
Regulations or Connecticut Law, the following fines may be assessed by citation for a violation of the
Wetlands Regulations:

(a) For conducting or allowing the conduct of any regulated activity within any portion of an inland
wetland or watercourse as defined within the Wetlands Regulations without a permit or in violation of
any permit, including but not limited to deposition of any material, removing of any material,
discharging, polluting, excavating, filling, draining, grading, clear-cutting, removal of vegetation,



DRAFT – 5/23/2024 

Ordinance No. 2024.02 
Page 3 of 6 

planting invasive vegetation, or other activities resulting in direct impacts, to any portion of an inland 
wetland or watercourse: a fine of $1,000 for each offense. 

(b) For conducting, permitting the conduct of, undertaking, permitting the existence of, or allowing
any regulated activity in an Upland Review Area as defined in the Wetlands Regulations without a
permit or in violation of any permit which causes, directly or indirectly, pollution, draining/drying,
erosion, filling, damage to native vegetation, or other negative impacts to an inland wetland or
watercourse or any portion thereof: a fine of $1,000 for each offense.

(c) For noncompliance with permit conditions and/or limitations or with enforcement orders, where
such noncompliance is not described in Subsection A(1)(a) or (b) of this section: a fine of $1,000 for
each offense.

(d) For conducting any other regulated activity without the issuance of a permit, where such activity
is not described in Subsection A(1)(a), (b) or (c) of this section: a fine of $500 for each offense.

(2) Each day on which a violation of the Wetlands Regulations continues to exist shall be deemed
a separate and distinct violation.

B. Violations of Zoning Regulations.

In addition to any statutory right or remedy available to the Town under the Zoning Regulations
or Connecticut Law, for violating, permitting the violation of, permitting the existence of, or allowing 
any violation of the Zoning Regulations, a fine of $150 per day may be assessed by citation for as long 
as such violation continues to exist. 

16-8  Appeals and Hearings.

Any person who receives a citation pursuant to this Article may challenge his or her liability 
therefor and request a hearing thereon in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter and the 
Connecticut General Statutes. 

Article III  Citation Hearing Procedure 

16-9  Authority; purpose.

Pursuant to the power granted by § 7-152c of the Connecticut General Statutes, as amended, 
the following shall be adopted in order to implement a citation hearing procedure following the 
issuance of a citation or notice of violation for violation of any Town ordinance and/or regulation. 

16-10  Appointment of Hearing Officer.

Immediately upon adoption of this chapter, the Town Manager shall appoint a Hearing Officer 
to conduct hearings authorized by this chapter. Said Hearing Officer shall serve without pay or 
compensation and shall not be a police officer, Citation Officeras hereafter defined, or employee of the 
Town of East Hampton. Said Hearing Officer shall serve until such time as a new Hearing Officer is 
designated by the Town Manager. 



DRAFT – 5/23/2024 

Ordinance No. 2024.02 
Page 4 of 6 

16-11  Issuance of Citations.

A. Initial notice required. Before any Citation Officer may issue a citation, he or she must
issue a written notice informing the recipient of the nature of the violation. Any such initial notice may 
be served either by hand delivery or by certified mail to the person named in such citation. If the person 
to whom such notice has been sent by certified mail refuses to accept such mail, the original or a 
certified copy of the original notice may be sent by First Class United States mail. The Citation Officer 
shall file and retain an original or certified copy of the initial notice, as well as any delivery 
confirmation, return receipt from certified mail, whether or not the mail was accepted, or affidavit of 
mailing for First Class US Mail. The date of delivery of the initial notice shall be deemed to be the 
earlier of: (1) the actual date of delivery, or (2) five business days after the date of the original mailing, 
regardless of whether such mailing was accepted. 

B. Citation process. A Citation Officer may issue a citation to any person to whom an initial
notice has been delivered pursuant to §16-11A if such Citation Officer finds that the violation described 
in the initial notice has not been fully abated by the date specified in said notice. Any such citation may 
be served either by hand delivery or by certified mail to the person named in such citation. If the person 
named in a citation sent by certified mail refuses to accept such mail, the original or a certified copy of 
the original citation may be sent by First Class United States mail. The Citation Officer shall file and 
retain an original or certified copy of the citation, any delivery confirmation or return receipt from 
certified mail, whether or not the mail was accepted and/or the affidavit of mailing for First Class US 
Mail. The date of delivery of the citation shall be deemed to be the earlier of: (1) the actual date of 
delivery, or (2) five business days after the date of the original mailing, regardless of whether such 
mailing was accepted. 

16-12  Period for Uncontested Payment of Fines.

Any person receiving a citation shall be allowed a period of 30 days from his or her receipt of 
the citation to make an uncontested payment of the fine specified in the citation. Such fines shall be 
made payable to the Town of East Hampton. If such fine is not paid within the thirty-day period, further 
actions may be taken pursuant to Chapter 16 of this Code regarding Citation Hearing Procedure and 
Section 7-152c of the Connecticut General Statutes. 

16-13 Advisory notice to cited individual.
A. Within the period set forth below, the Citation Officer who issued the citation or notice

of violation for violation of any Town ordinance and/or regulation may send an advisory notice to the 
cited individual. Such advisory notice shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, and by 
first-class mail, postage prepaid. The period within which said advisory notice may be provided is the 
twelve-month period following expiration of the period for uncontested payment of fines imposed by 
the citation or notice of violation. Said advisory notice shall be directed to the last known address of 
the cited individual. 

B. Such advisory notice shall contain the following information:
(1) A list of the allegations against the cited individual and the amount of fines, penalties, fees
and/or costs due;
(2) A statement that the cited individual may contest his liability before a Citation Hearing
Officer by delivering in person or by mail written notice to the Citation Officer within 10 days of
the date of the notice;
(3) A statement that if the cited individual does not demand such a hearing, an assessment and
judgment shall be entered against him; and



DRAFT – 5/23/2024 

Ordinance No. 2024.02 
Page 5 of 6 

(4) That such judgment may issue without further notice.

16-14  Admission of liability; request for hearing; hearing notice.

A. If the cited individual who has been sent an advisory notice wishes to admit liability
for any alleged violation, he may, without requesting a hearing, pay the full amount of the fines, 
penalties, fees and/or costs to the Director of Finance of the Town of East Hampton or the Director’s 
designee. Such payment shall be inadmissible in any civil or criminal proceeding to establish the 
conduct of such person making payment. 

B. Any cited individual who fails to request a hearing within 10 days of the date of the
advisory notice shall be deemed to have admitted liability, and the Citation Officer shall so certify to 
the Hearing Officer. The Hearing Officer shall immediately thereafter enter and assess the fines, 
penalties, fees and/or costs provided for by the applicable ordinances and/or regulations and shall 
follow the procedure set forth in §16-16 below. 

C. Any cited individual who requests a hearing shall be given written notice of the date,
time and place for such hearing. Said hearing notice shall be provided by the Hearing Officer, who 
shall provide a copy of same to the Citation Officer. The hearing shall be held not less than 15 days 
nor more than 30 days from the date of mailing of the hearing notice, provided the Hearing Officer 
shall grant, upon good cause shown, any reasonable request by any interested party for postponement 
or continuance. 

16-15  Hearing.

A. An original or certified copy of the original citation or notice of violation shall be
retained by the Citation Officer and shall be deemed to be a business record as provided by Connecticut 
General Statutes and shall be evidence of the facts contained therein. The Citation Officer must attend 
the hearing if the cited individual so requests. The Citation Officer or other Town official may present 
evidence on behalf of the Town. 

B. Unless excused by the Hearing Officer, the cited individual must attend the hearing and
may present evidence in his behalf. The Hearing Officer may excuse the cited individual from attending 
the hearing only where he has previously received from the cited individual, by mail, copies of police 
reports or other investigatory reports which he believes renders unnecessary the appearance of the cited 
individual. 

C. If the cited individual fails to appear, the Hearing Officer may enter an assessment by
default against him upon a finding of proper hearing notice and liability. 

D. The Hearing Officer shall conduct the hearing in the order and form and with such
methods of proof as he deems fair and appropriate. All testimony shall be given under oath or 
affirmation, but the rules of evidence shall not be strictly applied. 

16-16  Decision.

The Hearing Officer shall announce his decision at the end of the hearing. If he determines that 
the cited individual is not liable, he shall dismiss the matter and enter his determination in writing 
accordingly. If he determines that the cited individual is liable for the violation, he shall forthwith enter 
and assess the fines, penalties, fees and/or costs against the cited individual as provided by the 
applicable Town ordinances and/or regulations. 



DRAFT – 5/23/2024 

Ordinance No. 2024.02 
Page 6 of 6 

16-17  Payment of assessment; fees; assessment notice.

A. If such assessment is not paid on the date of its entry, the Hearing Officer shall send by
first class mail an assessment notice to the cited individual who has been found liable and shall file, 
not less than 30 days nor more than 12 months after such mailing, a certified copy of the assessment 
notice with the Clerk of Superior Court for Middlesex County, together with the entry fee as required 
by section 52-259 of the Connecticut General Statutes. The certified copy of said assessment notice 
shall constitute a record of assessment. Within such twelve-month period, assessments against the same 
individual may be accrued and filed as one record of assessment. 

B. The Clerk shall enter judgment in the amount of such record of assessment and court
costs required by section 52-259 of the Connecticut General Statutes against the cited individual in 
favor of the Town of East Hampton. The Hearing Officer's assessment, when so entered as a judgment, 
shall have the effect of a civil money judgment, and a levy of execution of such judgment may issue 
without further notice to such individual. 

16-18  Appeal rights.

Pursuant to § 7-152c(g) of the Connecticut General Statutes, as amended, the individual against 
whom an assessment is entered is entitled to judicial review by way of appeal. The appeal must be 
instituted with the Superior Court for Middlesex County within 30 days of the mailing of the assessment 
notice, as provided by the Connecticut General Statutes. The rules of the judges of the Superior Court 
shall thereafter apply. 

Section 2: Subject to the applicable provisions of the Town Charter, this ordinance is effective 
immediately upon its adoption and publication. 

Approved this ____ day of _____________ , 2024. 

TOWN COUNCIL ATTEST 

Dean Markham, Chairperson Patricia Burnham, Town Clerk  



1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424 |   860.267.4468 tel    |   860.267.1027 fax  |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

Office Assistant  
Fire Department

(Part-time) 

 DRAFT – May 23, 2024 

General statement of duties 
The Office Assistant plays a critical role in keeping the office a positive and productive 
environment.  The Office Assistant is responsible for performing a wide range of clerical 
and record-keeping duties for the smooth and efficient operation of the Fire 
Department.   

General description 
This is varied, and diverse administrative work performed under general supervision. 
The Office Assistant is responsible for the coordination of administrative support 
functions to the Fire Chief, Chief Officers, and the Fire Commission, including work 
involving computer and communications systems support and statistical data.   

Supervision received 
The Office Assistant reports to and works under the general direction of the Fire Chief 
or there designee.   

Supervision exercised 
None.   

Essential duties and responsibilities 

 Responsible for accurately recording all fire incident data into computer
system in a timely manner.

 Inputs, verifies, and certifies data for federal, state, and local agencies.
Prepares and processes documents, such as business or government reports.

 Responsible for computer system applications including software review, and
recommendations.

 Assists in training for fire department personnel on reporting systems.
 Coordinates with IT staff on technology system issues and/or contacts software

vendors to resolve issues.
 Maintains and updates filing, inventory, mailing and database systems, using a

computer. (Includes updating fire department records such as physicals,
equipment testing, training, etc.).

 Compiles statistical information for annual reports.  Types, edits, assembles and
publishes reports as required.

 Submit bills and other documents to the Town Hall on a weekly basis.
 Prepares meeting agendas, attend meetings, and records and transcribes

minutes.
 Distribute agendas and minutes to members and submit approved/completed

meeting notes to the Town Clerk’s Office for filing.
 Responsible for handling and protecting confidential information.

Agenda Item 9b



 

 

2

1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424   |   860.267.9601 tel    |   860.267.6430 fax   |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

 Operates office machines, such as photocopiers and scanners, facsimile 
machines, voice mail systems, and personal computers.  

 Open, sort, and route incoming mail, and prepare outgoing mail.  
 Answer telephones, direct calls, and take messages. 

 
Nonessential duties 
Assists Town staff in other related municipal projects as required.   
 
Knowledge, abilities, and skills 
 Working knowledge of office practices and procedures.  
 Proficiency in Microsoft Office products, as well as the ability to learn specific fire 

department software programs. 
 Skilled in the use of operating basic office equipment. 
 Ability to troubleshoot technical computer and office equipment issues. 
 Quick and accurate typing; familiarity with data entry software. 
 Ability to manage multiple tasks efficiently. 
 High level of accuracy when performing tasks like data entry, proofreading, and 

record-keeping. 
 Ability to take initiative in researching new procedures and methods for fire 

department reporting.   
 Capacity to independently resolve issues that may arise during daily operations. 
 Proficiency in communicating clearly both verbally and in writing. 
 Ability to understand and follow specific instructions and procedures. 
 Ability to compile data and information for reports or internal working data and 

statistics.  
 Strong organizational skills required.   
 Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with other 

employees, volunteers, and the general public.  
 

Acceptable experience, education, and training   
Graduation from high school and four (4) years of employment in an administrative 
assistant/clerical capacity, or an associate degree in office/business administration or 
related field and two (2) years in an administrative support role including strong 
knowledge of computer software and programs and communication systems.  Must 
successfully complete a background screening process.  Experience in fire department 
administrative support including National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS), reporting 
preferred, (  
 
Physical requirements  
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the 
essential functions.  
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to walk, sit, 
and talk or hear.  The employee is required to use hands to finger, handle, feel or operate 



 

 

3

1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424   |   860.267.9601 tel    |   860.267.6430 fax   |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms.  The employee is occasionally 
required to climb or balance; stoop, kneel, crouch or crawl.  The employee must 
occasionally lift and/or move up to 10 pounds.  Specific vision abilities required by this job 
include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and 
the ability to adjust focus. 
 
Work environment 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an 
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the 
essential functions.   
 
Work is performed in an office setting.  The noise level in the work environment is usually 
quiet in the office.   
 
General guidelines 
The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that 
may be performed.  The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them 
from the position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.   
 
The employee must demonstrate honesty and integrity in behavior and attitude and 
represent the department in a positive light.   
 
The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the 
employer and employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the 
employer and requirements of the job change.  This is a non-exempt position.   
 
  
(Updated and approved by Town Council 5/2024).    
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



original version



Agenda Item 9d

















































Agenda Item 12



Agenda Item 14a




